

**Trustees of the
California State University**

Resolutions

**May 15-16, 2018
California State University
Office of the Chancellor
401 Golden Shore, Long Beach, CA 90802**

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

Approval to Issue Trustees of the California State University Systemwide Revenue Bonds and Related Debt Instruments for Projects at California State University, Dominguez Hills and California State University, Los Angeles (RFIN 05-18-02)

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, as bond counsel, prepared resolutions presented in agenda item 2 on the Committee on Finance at the May 15-16, 2018 meeting that authorize interim and permanent financing for the projects described in this agenda item. The proposed resolutions were distributed at the meeting and will achieve the following:

1. Authorize the sale and issuance of the Trustees of the California State University Systemwide Revenue Bonds, and/or the sale and issuance of related Systemwide Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, and/or the issuance of related debt instruments, including shorter term debt, variable rate debt, floating rate loans placed directly with banks, or fixed rate loans placed directly with banks, in an aggregate amount not-to-exceed \$283,345,000 and certain actions relating thereto.
2. Provide a delegation to the chancellor; the executive vice chancellor and chief financial officer; the assistant vice chancellor, Financial Services; and the assistant vice chancellor, Financing, Treasury, and Risk Management; and their designees to take any and all necessary actions to execute documents for the sale and issuance of the bond anticipation notes and the revenue bonds.
3. Incorporate by reference the Standing Orders of the Board as adopted on March 21, 2018 authorizing the Chancellor “to authorize the sale and issuance of the Trustees of the California State University Systemwide Revenue Bonds, and/or the sale and issuance of related Systemwide Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, and/or the issuance of related debt instruments for projects approved by the chancellor under delegated authority” for, among other things, projects with a value up to \$40 million and all new parking structures, regardless of cost, as the same may be amended from time to time.

**Establishing a Tuition Rate for Doctor of Audiology Programs
(RFIN 05-18-03)**

RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the CSU Doctor of Audiology Tuition is hereby established; and, be it further

RESOLVED, That the tuition rate approved for the 2018-2019 academic year and Summer 2019 shall be \$7,371 per semester campus term. Students will be assessed the Doctor of Audiology tuition rate of \$7,371 each term, irrespective of the number of units taken. Students enrolled in audiology degree programs also shall be subject to campus-based mandatory fees; and, be it further

RESOLVED, That recommended adjustments in the CSU Doctor of Audiology Tuition will be based on cost and/or price changes of the programs, and be it further

RESOLVED, That the chancellor is delegated authority to further adopt, amend, or repeal the CSU Doctor of Audiology Tuition rate if such action is required by state statute and/or the state budget act, and that such changes made by the chancellor are communicated promptly to the trustees.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATIONAL POLICY

**Approval of Recommended Amendments to Title 5 Regarding Doctor of Nursing Practice Degree Programs
(REP 05-18-04)**

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, acting under the authority prescribed herein and pursuant to Section 89030 and 89030.1 of the Education Code, that sections 40050.2, 40100.1, 40513, 40514 and 41021 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations are amended as follows:

**Title 5, California Code of Regulations
Division 5 – Board of Trustees of the California State Universities
Chapter 1 – California State University
Subchapter 2 – Educational Programs
Article 1 – General Function**

§ 40050.2. Function: Instruction Leading to the Doctor of Nursing Practice Degree.

Notwithstanding Section 40050, the Doctor of Nursing Practice degree may be awarded independently of any other institution of higher education, provided that the program leading to the degree is one of the three pilot programs authorized by the Board of Trustees and satisfies the criteria of Section 40513 and Section 40514.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 66040, 66600, 89030, 89035, 89280, and 89281, 89282, 89283 and 89284, Education Code. Reference: Sections 89280, and 89281, 89282, 89283 and 89284, Education Code.

**Title 5, California Code of Regulations
Division 5 – Board of Trustees of the California State Universities
Chapter 1 – California State University
Subchapter 2 – Educational Programs
Article 2 – Curricula**

§ 40100.1. Cooperative Curricula.

Curricula leading to the bachelor's, master's, or doctoral degree may be established cooperatively by two or more campuses. The Chancellor is authorized to establish and from time to time revise such procedures as may be appropriate for the administration of this section.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 66600, 89030 and 89035, Education Code.
Reference: Sections 66040, 66042, 66600, 89030, 89280, and 89281, ~~89282,~~
~~89283 and 89284~~, Education Code.

Title 5, California Code of Regulations
Division 5 – Board of Trustees of the California State Universities
Chapter 1 – California State University
Subchapter 2 – Educational Programs
Article 7 – Graduate Degrees

§ 40513. The Doctor of Nursing Practice Degree.

(a) California State University programs leading to a Doctor of Nursing Practice degree shall be ~~operated as pilot degree programs, with student enrollment permitted prior to July 1, 2018 and student course work allowed to be completed on or after July 1, 2018~~ distinguished from a University of California Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing program.

~~(b) The programs shall not supplant nursing programs offered by the CSU at the master's level as of January 1, 2010.~~

~~(e)~~ California State University Doctor of Nursing Practice degree programs shall conform to the following criteria:

(1) The clinical degree programs in advanced nursing practice shall prepare graduates for leadership and clinical roles and to engage in evidence-based inquiry; and programs may also prepare graduates to serve as faculty in postsecondary nursing education programs.

~~(2) Programs shall enable professionals to earn the degree while working full time.~~

~~(3)~~ Programs shall be consistent with the requirements of a professional nursing accrediting body and the regional accrediting association.

~~(d)~~ Each campus offering a program leading to a Doctor of Nursing Practice degree shall establish requirements for admission to the program. The requirements for admission shall include, at a minimum, the requirements stated in Section 41021.

~~(e)~~ Programs leading to the Doctor of Nursing Practice degree shall conform to the following specifications:

(1) The curriculum may be organized as a cohort-based program and shall include learning experiences that balance research, theory, and practice. The core curriculum for each DNP program shall provide professional preparation in advanced nursing practice, including but not be limited to theory, application and evaluation of ~~and research findings, methods and evaluation~~, curriculum development and evaluation, professional practice, management and leadership, and essential curricular concepts for advanced nursing at the doctoral level.

(2) The pattern of study for the post-bachelor's degree in nursing to the Doctor of Nursing Practice degree program shall include at least 27 semester units in

courses organized primarily for doctoral students, and the remaining units required for the degree shall be in courses organized for specialty advanced nursing coursework as identified by national nursing specialty certification agencies. No more than 12 semester doctoral project units shall be allowed toward the degree program requirements.

(23) The pattern of study for the post-master's Doctor of Nursing Practice degree program shall be composed of at least 36 semester units (~~54 quarter units~~) earned in graduate standing. At least 27 semester units (~~40.5 quarter units~~) required for the degree shall be in courses organized primarily for doctoral students, and the remaining units required for the degree shall be in courses organized primarily for doctoral students or courses organized primarily for master's and doctoral students.

(34) At least 2480 percent of required Doctor of Nursing Practice semester units (~~36 quarter units~~) shall be completed in residence at the campus awarding the degree or campuses jointly awarding the degree. The appropriate campus authority may authorize the substitution of credit earned by alternate means for part of this residence requirement. The campus may establish a policy allowing the transfer of relevant coursework and credits completed as a matriculated student in another graduate program, on the condition that the other program is appropriately accredited.

(45) A doctoral qualifying examination or assessment shall be required.

(56) The pattern of study shall include completion of a doctoral project.

(A) The doctoral project shall be the written product of a systematic, rigorous, research-evidence-based endeavor focused on a significant advanced-nursing practice issue. The doctoral project is expected to contribute to an improvement in professional practices, ~~or~~ policy, or patient outcomes. It shall evidence originality, critical and independent thinking, appropriate form and organization, and ~~a~~ adequate rationale.

(B) The doctoral project shall reflect a command of the ~~research~~ scholarly literature and shall demonstrate the student's mastery of evidence-based practice at the doctoral level.

(C) The written component of the doctoral project shall be organized in an appropriate form and shall identify the ~~research~~ problem statement and ~~question(s)~~ purpose, state the major theoretical perspectives, explain the significance of the undertaking, relate it to the relevant scholarly and professional literature, identify the methods of gathering and analyzing the data, and offer a conclusion or recommendation.

(D) No more than 12 semester units (~~18 quarter units~~) shall be allowed for the doctoral project.

(E) An oral ~~defense~~ representation of the doctoral project shall be required.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 66600, 89030, 89035, 89280, ~~and~~ 89281, ~~89283 and 89284~~, Education Code. Reference: Sections: 66600, 89280 and 89281, ~~89283 and 89284~~, Education Code.

Title 5, California Code of Regulations
Division 5 – Board of Trustees of the California State Universities
Chapter 1 – California State University
Subchapter 2 – Educational Programs
Article 7 – Graduate Degrees

§ 40514. The Doctor of Nursing Practice Degree: Requirements.

(a) To be eligible for the Doctor of Nursing Practice degree, the candidate shall have completed a program of study that includes a qualifying assessment and a doctoral project consistent with the specifications in subdivision (e~~d~~) of Section 40513 and that is approved by the appropriate campus authority. A grade point average of 3.0 (grade of B) or better shall have been earned in courses taken to satisfy the requirements for the degree, except that a course in which no letter grade is assigned shall not be used in computing the grade point average.

(b) Advancement to Candidacy. For advancement to candidacy for the Doctor of Nursing Practice degree, the student shall have achieved classified graduate standing and met such particular requirements as the Chancellor and the appropriate campus authority may prescribe. The requirements shall include a qualifying assessment.

(c) The student shall have completed all requirements for the degree within five years of matriculation into the doctoral program. The appropriate campus authority may extend by up to two years the time for completion of the requirements under the following circumstances;

- (1) the student is in good standing,
- (2) the extension is warranted by compelling individual circumstances, and
- (3) the student demonstrates current knowledge of research and practice in advanced nursing practice, as required by the campus.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 66600, 89030, 89035, 89280, and 89281, ~~89283 and 89284~~, Education Code. Reference Sections: 66600, 89030, 89280, and 89281, ~~89283 and 89284~~, Education Code.

Title 5, California Code of Regulations
Division 5 – Board of Trustees of the California State Universities
Chapter 1 – California State University
Subchapter 3 – Admission Requirements
Article 8 – Admission of Post-Baccalaureate and Graduate Students

§ 41021. Admission to Doctor of Nursing Practice Programs.

An applicant may be admitted with classified graduate standing to a program leading to a Doctor of Nursing Practice degree established pursuant to Section 40513 if the applicant satisfies the requirements of each of the following numbered subdivisions:

- (1) The applicant holds an acceptable bachelor's degree in nursing or master's degree in nursing earned at an institution accredited by a regional accrediting association and a national professional accrediting association, as applicable; or the applicant has completed equivalent academic preparation as determined by the appropriate campus authority.
- (2) The applicant has attained a cumulative grade point average of at least 3.0 in an acceptable bachelor's degree in nursing or master's degree in nursing~~program~~ as determined by the appropriate campus authority.
- (3) The applicant maintains active licensure to practice as a registered nurse in the state in which practicum experiences will be completed.
- (4) The applicant meets all requirements for credentialing or certification eligibility as appropriate to the nursing specialty area.
- (5) The applicant has demonstrated sufficient preparation and experience pertinent to ~~advanced~~ nursing practice to be successful in doctoral education.
- (6) The applicant has met any additional requirements established by the chancellor and any additional requirements prescribed by the appropriate campus authority.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 66600, 89030, 89035, 89280, and 89281, ~~89283, and 89284~~, Education Code. Reference: Sections 66600, 89030, 89280, and 89281, ~~89283, and 89284~~, Education Code.

COMMITTEE ON CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

**Categories and Criteria for the Five-Year Facilities Renewal and Capital Improvement Plan 2019-2020 through 2023-2024
(RCPBG 05-18-06)**

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

1. The Categories and Criteria for the Five-Year Facilities Renewal and Capital Improvement Plan 2019-2020 through 2023-2024 in Attachment A of Agenda Item 3 of the May 15-16, 2018 meeting of the Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds be approved; and
2. The chancellor is directed to use these categories and criteria to prepare the 2019-2020 Capital Outlay Program and Five-Year Facilities Renewal and Capital Improvement Plan for 2019-2020 through 2023-2024.

**California State University, Los Angeles—Student Housing East
(RCPBG 05-18-07)**

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

1. The May 2017 Final EIR and the March 2018 Addendum prepared for the Student Housing East project have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act.
2. The California State University, Los Angeles Student Housing East project is consistent with the Campus Master Plan approved in May 2017.
3. The project will benefit the California State University.
4. The 2017-2018 Capital Outlay Program is amended to include \$202,472,000 for preliminary plans, working drawings, construction, and equipment for the California State University, Los Angeles Student Housing East project.
5. The schematic plans for the California State University, Los Angeles Student Housing East project are approved at a project cost of \$202,472,000 at CCCI 6255.
6. The chancellor is authorized under the Delegation of Authority granted by the Board of Trustees to file a Notice of Determination for the project.

**California State University, Dominguez Hills Innovation and Instruction Building
(RCPBG 05-18-08)**

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

1. The California State University, Dominguez Hills Innovation and Instruction Building is consistent with the Campus Master Plan approved in May 2010.
2. The project will benefit the California State University.
3. The schematic plans for the California State University, Dominguez Hills Innovation and Instruction Building project are approved at a project cost of \$83,530,000 at CCCI 6840.

**California State University, East Bay CORE Building (Library Replacement Seismic)
(RCPBG 05-18-09)**

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

1. The Board of Trustees finds that the 2009 Master Plan Final EIR, which was recertified by the Board of Trustees in January 2018, has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act.
2. The project is consistent with the previously certified Master Plan Final EIR.
3. With implementation of the mitigation measures set forth in the master plan previously approved by the trustees, the proposed project will not have a significant adverse effect upon the environment beyond those described in the Master Plan Final EIR, and the project will benefit the CSU.
4. The California State University, East Bay Campus Master Plan Revision dated May 2018 is approved.
5. The schematic plans for the California State University, East Bay CORE Building (Library Replacement Seismic) are approved at a project cost of \$100,470,000 at CCCI 6840.
6. The chancellor or his designee is requested under the Delegation of Authority granted by the Board of Trustees to file the Notice of Determination for the project.

**San Diego State University Master Plan Revision
(RCPBG 05-18-10)**

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

1. The 2018 Draft and Final Additional Analysis (2018 AA) has been prepared to address the items identified in the peremptory Writ of Mandate issued on November 30, 2015 by the San Diego Superior Court (Writ), directing the Board of Trustees to take certain actions in response to the decisions rendered by the California Supreme Court and Court of Appeal.
2. The 2007 FEIR, as modified by the 2018 AA, addresses the specific issues identified by the court, and was circulated for public review and comment and includes responses to all written comments submitted on the Draft AA pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the State CEQA Guidelines, and CSU CEQA procedures.
3. This resolution is adopted pursuant to the requirements of Section 21081 of the Public Resources Code and Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, which require that the Board of Trustees make findings prior to approval of any project along with a statement of fact supporting each finding.
4. The Board of Trustees has reviewed and considered the additional information prepared for Agenda Item 7 of the May 15-16, 2018 meeting of the Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds regarding the re-certification of the 2007 FEIR, as modified by the 2018 Draft AA, which addresses the specific issues identified by the court through the identification of significant impacts and related mitigation measures, which are hereby incorporated by reference.
5. The Board of Trustees has reconsidered its November 2007 project approvals in light of the analysis set forth in the 2007 FEIR as modified by the 2018 AA, and all other information and analysis specified in the record for this Project. The Board of Trustees hereby adopts findings approving the SDSU 2007 Campus Master Plan, as modified, including the revised CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Consideration as expressly set forth herein and in order to comply with the Writ.
6. The Board of Trustees adopts the revised Findings of Fact and related mitigation measures identified in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for Agenda Item 7 of the May 15-16, 2018 meeting of the Board of Trustees' Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds that identifies specific impacts of the proposed Project and related mitigation measures, which are hereby incorporated by reference.

7. The Board of Trustees adopts the revised Findings of Fact that include specific Overriding Considerations that the benefits of the Project outweigh certain remaining unavoidable significant impacts to aesthetics and visual quality, air quality, and traffic and circulation as disclosed in the 2007 FEIR as modified by the 2018 Draft AA.
8. The Board of Trustees concludes that the estimated cost to fund and implement the Project's off-site future traffic mitigation is \$7,450,000. This figure is based upon certain traffic improvements identified by and within the jurisdictions of the City of San Diego and the City of La Mesa in order to improve traffic conditions near campus, and includes escalation to estimated construction dates. If all Project improvements are built as proposed to meet the SDSU enrollment mitigation triggers with the eventual ceiling of 35,000 FTES, the traffic mitigation improvements will be implemented over a period of 17 years. This off-site traffic mitigation is dependent, in part, on the City of San Diego's approval of the removal of on-street parking at three road segments and road re-striping at a fourth; absent city approval, the impacts at these three locations would remain significant and unavoidable. Additionally, the identified mitigation will not fully mitigate the Project's cumulatively significant and unavoidable traffic impacts to one intersection and three roadway segments identified in the 2018 DAA, as there are no current plans, programs, or funding in place to augment the CSU's fair share of these improvements; or physical constraints exist that make the necessary improvements infeasible; to the extent available, feasible mitigation is identified that would partially mitigate these impacts. Therefore, the Board of Trustees adopts Findings of Facts that include specific Overriding Considerations that the benefits of the Project outweigh the remaining significant and unavoidable traffic impacts.
9. Consistent with the Writ, the Board of Trustees approves the use of an estimated \$7,450,000 for funding and implementation of near term and horizon year off site improvements. The funds are expected from future state capital or operating budget funding, the CSU, self-support entities, and/or other entities.
10. Prior to recertification of the 2007 FEIR as modified by the 2018 AA, the Board of Trustees has reviewed and considered the 2007 FEIR as modified by the 2018 AA and finds that it reflects the independent judgment of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees hereby concurs with and certifies the 2007 FEIR as modified by the 2018 AA prepared for the proposed Project as complete and adequate and in conformance with CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and the requirements imposed by the Writ.

- For the purposes of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, the record of the proceedings for the Project includes the following:
- a. The approval of the 2007 SDSU Master Plan;
 - b. The 2007 FEIR, including all comments received and responses to these comments;
 - c. All proceedings before the Board of Trustees relating to the Project, including testimony and documentary evidence introduced at such proceedings;
 - d. All records of court proceedings, including, but not limited to the Peremptory Writ of Mandate issued on November 30, 2015;
 - e. The 2018 AA, which modifies the 2007 FEIR traffic and transportation analysis, including all comments received in response to the 2018 Draft AA and the responses to these comments; and
 - f. All attachments, documents incorporated, and references made in the documents as specified in items (a) through (e) above.
11. The above information is on file with the California State University, Office of the Chancellor, Capital Planning, Design and Construction, 401 Golden Shore, Long Beach, California 90802-4210, and at San Diego State University, Facilities Planning, Design and Construction, 5500 Campanile Drive, San Diego, CA 92182.
 12. The Board of Trustees hereby directs that the 2007 FEIR as modified by the 2018 AA be forwarded to the San Diego County Superior Court for its consideration in accordance with the Writ, and that the 2007 FEIR as modified by the 2018 AA be considered in any further actions on the Project.
 13. The Project will benefit the California State University.
 14. The SDSU 2007 Campus Master Plan Revision, as analyzed in the 2007 FEIR and 2018 AA is hereby approved, effective May 16, 2018.
 15. The chancellor or his designee is requested under the Delegation of Authority granted by the Board of Trustees to file the Notice of Determination for the Project.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Conferral of the Title of Student Trustee Emeritus—Jorge Reyes Salinas (RCOW 05-18-02)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that this board confers the title of Student Trustee Emeritus on Jorge Reyes Salinas, with all the rights and privileges thereto.

Conferral of Commendation—President Sally Roush (RCOW 05-18-03)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that this board commends President Sally Roush for her dedication and leadership on behalf of the students, faculty, staff, administrators, alumni and friends of San Diego State University and the California State University.

Conferral of the Title of President Emeritus—Willie Hagan (RCOW 05-18-04)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that this board confers the title of President Emeritus on President Willie Hagan, with all the rights and privileges thereto.

Conferral of the Title of President Emeritus—Horace Mitchell (RCOW 05-18-05)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that this board confers the title of President Emeritus on President Horace Mitchell, with all the rights and privileges thereto.

COMMITTEE ON COMMITTEES

Election of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees for 2018-2019 (RCOC 05-18-01)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of The California State University, on recommendation by the Committee on Committees, that Adam Day be elected chair for 2018-2019 to take effect immediately following the conclusion of the May 15-16, 2018 board meeting.

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of The California State University, on recommendation by the Committee on Committees, that Lillian Kimbell be elected vice chair for 2018-2019 to take effect immediately following the conclusion of the May 15-16, 2018 board meeting

Approval of Board of Trustees' Standing Committee Assignments for 2018-2019 (RCOC 05-18-02)

RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of The California State University, on recommendation by the Committee on Committees that the following appointments be made to the Standing Committees for 2018-2019 to take effect immediately following the conclusion of the May 15-16, 2018 board meeting.

AUDIT

Douglas Faigin, Chair
Hugo N. Morales, Vice Chair
Jack McGrory
Lateefah Simon

CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

Rebecca D. Eisen, Chair
Romey Sabalius, Vice Chair
Jane W. Carney
Wenda Fong
John Nilon
Christopher Steinhauser
Peter J. Taylor

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

Lateefah Simon, Chair
John Nilon, Vice Chair
Silas H. Abrego
Emily Hinton
Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana
J. Lawrence Norton
Peter J. Taylor

EDUCATIONAL POLICY

Peter J. Taylor, Chair
Jane W. Carney, Vice Chair
Rebecca D. Eisen
Debra S. Farar
Wenda Fong
Emily Hinton
Lillian Kimbell
Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana
John Nilon
J. Lawrence Norton
Romey Sabalius
Christopher Steinhauser

FINANCE

John Nilon, Chair
Peter J. Taylor, Vice Chair
Jane W. Carney
Douglas Faigin
Emily Hinton
Jack McGrory
Hugo N. Morales
Lateefah Simon
Christopher Steinhauser

GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

J. Lawrence Norton, Chair
Emily Hinton, Vice Chair
Silas H. Abrego
Douglas Faigin
Debra S. Farar
Jean Picker Firstenberg
Wenda Fong
Lillian Kimbell
Jack McGrory
Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana
Romey Sabalius

INSTITUTIONAL ADVANCEMENT

Jean Picker Firstenberg, Chair
Rebecca D. Eisen, Vice Chair
Debra S. Farar
Wenda Fong
Jack McGrory
Hugo N. Morales
J. Lawrence Norton
Romey Sabalius

ORGANIZATION AND RULES

Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Chair
Lillian Kimbell, Vice Chair
Silas H. Abrego
Jane W. Carney
Jean Picker Firstenberg
Lateefah Simon
Christopher Steinhauser

**UNIVERSITY AND FACULTY
PERSONNEL**

Hugo N. Morales, Chair
Silas H. Abrego, Vice Chair
Rebecca D. Eisen
Douglas Faigin
Debra S. Farar
Jean Picker Firstenberg
Lillian Kimbell